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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Partners of Centrum REMA LLP 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Financial statements of Centrum REMA LLP (“the LLP”), which 

comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement 

of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements including a summary of 

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as 

“Financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Limited Liability Partnership Act, 

2008 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the  

accounting principles generally accepted in India issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India (“ICAI”), of the state of affairs of the LLP as at March 31, 2020, its loss and its cash flows for 

the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by the ICAI. Our 

responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 

Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the LLP in accordance 

with the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 

to our audit of the financial statements and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern  

We draw attention to Note 28 in the financial statements regarding preparation of the LLP’s financial 

statements on a going concern assumption. The LLP has incurred a net loss of Rs. 4,31,22,647 during 

the year ended March 31, 2020 and as of that date the LLP’s accumulated losses amount to Rs. 

10,44,02,298 resulting in negative net worth of the LLP. These conditions indicate that a material 

uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the LLP’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

The financial statements are prepared on going concern basis, as based on the projected operations 

and the LLP’s marketing efforts, the LLP expects to generate adequate surplus in the future and 

consequently does not foresee any difficulty in settling its liabilities as and when they arise. Further, 

the partners continue to support the LLP in its operations and financial management. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

 

  



 

Continuation Sheet 

Responsibilities of the Management for the Financial Statements 

The LLP’s Management (designated partners) is responsible for the preparation of the Financial 
Statements in accordance with the Rule 24 of the Limited Liability Partnership Rules, 2009 (“the 
Rules”), and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of the Statement of Accounts that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, LLP’s Management are responsible for assessing the LLP’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless LLP’s Management either intends to liquidate the 
LLP or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 

Management is also responsible for overseeing the LLP’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 

that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 

exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 

the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 

on the basis of this financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 

audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 

not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 

error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 

override of internal control. 

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the LLP’s internal control. 

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by LLP’s Management. 

•  Conclude on the appropriateness of LLP’s Management use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the LLP’s ability to continue 

as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 

attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 

may cause the LLP to cease to continue as a going concern. 
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•  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 

the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 

where applicable, related safeguards. 

 
For Haribhakti & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W / W100048 

 

____________________ 

Sumant Sakhardande 

Partner 

Membership No. 034828 

UDIN: 20034828AAAADP7052 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : July 07, 2020 

 



Centrum REMA LLP
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020
(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

CONTRIBUTION AND LIABILITIES
Partners’ funds
Capital Account 3 1,00,000                 1,00,000                 
Current Account 3 -10,44,02,298        -6,12,79,651          

-10,43,02,298        -6,11,79,651          
Non-current liabilities
Long-term provisions 4 14,09,337               6,57,167                 

14,09,337               6,57,167                 
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 5 9,59,71,507            7,01,00,000            
Trade Payables 6

Dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises -                           -                           
Dues to other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 46,03,360               4,53,394                 

Other current liabilities 7 1,12,34,233            72,08,428               
Short-term provisions 8 1,42,303                 15,241                    

11,19,51,403          7,77,77,063            

Total 90,58,442               1,72,54,579           
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets

Property, plant & equipment 9 17,15,318               15,07,388               
Intangible assets 10 20,48,724               25,73,603               

37,64,042               40,80,991               

Long-term loans and advances 11 33,89,074               9,48,592                 
71,53,116               50,29,583               

Current assets
Trade receivables 12 4,87,022                 98,43,967               
Cash and cash equivalents 13 90,900                     23,81,029               
Short-term loans and advances 14 11,99,153               -                           
Other current assets 15 1,28,251                 -                           

19,05,326               1,22,24,996            

Total 90,58,442               1,72,54,579           

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

For M/s Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Centrum REMA LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 103523W / W100048

Sumant Sakhardande Jaspal Singh Bindra Harish Sharma
Partner On behalf of Centrum Alternatives LLP Designated Partner
Membership No.: 034828 DPIN: 00128320 DPIN: 07295282

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date  : Jul 07, 2020 Date  : Jul 07, 2020

Particulars Note No.



Centrum REMA LLP
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

REVENUE

Revenue from operations 16 6,74,74,597              2,15,59,263            
Other Income 17 42,33,485                 18,56,267               
Total revenue 7,17,08,082              2,34,15,530            

EXPENSES

Direct cost of sales 18 1,85,15,077              1,45,27,058            
Employee benefit expense 19 6,04,29,560              4,24,68,888            
Depreciation and amortisation expense 20 10,50,687                 5,37,450                 
Finance costs 21 96,76,615                 1,49,762                 
Other expenses 22 2,51,58,790              1,14,95,893            
Total expenses 11,48,30,729           6,91,79,051            

Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax -4,31,22,647            -4,57,63,521          
Exceptional items -                             
Loss before  tax -4,31,22,647            -4,57,63,521          
Income tax expense

Current tax -                             -                           
Deferred tax -                             -                           
MAT credit entitlement -                             -                           

Loss for the year -4,31,22,647            -4,57,63,521          

Appropriation of Loss %
Centrum Alternatives LLP 88 -3,79,47,929            -4,02,71,898          
Harish Sharma 12 -51,74,718                -54,91,623              

-4,31,22,647            -4,57,63,521          

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

For M/s Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Centrum REMA LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 103523W / W100048

Sumant Sakhardande Jaspal Singh Bindra Harish Sharma
Partner On behalf of Centrum Alternatives LLP Designated Partner
Membership No.: 034828 DPIN: 00128320 DPIN: 07295282

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date  : Jul 07, 2020 Date  : Jul 07, 2020

Particulars Note No.



Centrum REMA LLP
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation -4,31,22,647         -4,57,63,521         
Add / (Less) : Adjustments for

Interest Expenses 96,76,615              1,49,762                
Depreciation/Amortisation 10,50,687              5,37,450                

Operating loss before working capital changes -3,23,95,345         -4,50,76,309         

Adjustments for:
Decrease/(Increase) in Loans and Advances -11,99,153             8,28,756                
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivable 93,56,945              -98,43,967             
Increase in Other Assets -1,28,251               -                          
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payable 41,49,966              -34,97,940             
Increase in Other Liabilities 35,04,527              44,26,287              
Increase in Provisions 8,79,232                3,49,049                
Net cash used in Operations -1,58,32,079         -5,28,14,124         
Taxes paid 24,40,482              9,48,592                
Net cash used in Operating Activities  ( A ) -1,82,72,561         -5,37,62,716         

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets -8,23,738               -36,28,663             
Net cash used in Investing Activities ( B ) -8,23,738               -36,28,663             

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Borrowings 3,10,70,000           7,16,75,000           
Repayment of Borrowings -1,07,00,000         -1,20,75,000         
Interest paid -35,63,830             -1,49,762               
Net cash generated from Financing Activities ( C ) 1,68,06,170           5,94,50,238           

Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents (A+B+C) -22,90,129             20,58,859              
As at the beginning of the year 23,81,029              3,22,170                
Closing cash and cash equivalents 90,900                   23,81,029              

As at the end of the year (refer note 13)
Cash in hand including foreign currencies -                          514                         
Balance with scheduled banks-Current accounts 90,900                   23,80,515              
Closing cash and cash equivalents 90,900                   23,81,029              

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

For M/s Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Centrum REMA LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 103523W / W100048

Sumant Sakhardande Jaspal Singh Bindra Harish Sharma
Partner On behalf of Centrum Alternatives LLP Designated Partner
Membership No.: 034828 DPIN: 00128320 DPIN: 07295282

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date  : Jul 07, 2020 Date  : Jul 07, 2020

Particulars

The above cash flow statements have been prepared under the indirect method set out in Accounting Standard (AS) -3 'Cash
Flow Statement' issued by ICAI.



Centrum REMA LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements  for the year ended and as at 31 March 2020
(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

1. FIRM OVERVIEW

Partner
Mr. Harish Sharma
Centrum Alternatives LLP

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.a Basis of preparation

2.b Use of estimates

2.c Property, Plant & Equipment

2.d Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment

Particulars Years
Computers - Hardware 3
Computers - Software 6
Office equipments 5
Furniture and Fixtures 10

2.e Intangible Assets 

2.f Revenue recognition

Income from services:

Interest income:

Dividend income:
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s rights to receive payment have been established.

Centrum REMA LLP (the 'LLP') is a Limited Liability Partnership incorporated on 08th November, 2017 with its registered office located at
Centrum House, CST Road, Vidyanagari Marg, Kalina, Santacruz (East), Mumbai 400098.

The profit/loss sharing ratio as per the partnership deed is as flows:
Ratio
12%
88%

The Financial Statements have been prepared on accrual basis under historical cost convention and in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). The accounting policies are consistently
applied unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting year end. Although these estimates
are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

The Firm is carrying on the business:
(a) of selling apartments, commercial offices and plots for developers and financial institutions and to render all other related support
and incidental services like fund raising or marketing.
(b) to act as advisors, investment advisors/managers, consultants, referral agent.

Properties, Plant & Equipment's are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, amortization and impairment losses if any. Cost
comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Borrowing
costs relating to acquisition of property, plant and equipment which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line method over the useful lives of assets except for leasehold
improvements. Leasehold improvements are amortized over a period of lease or useful life whichever is less.

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding.

The Company capitalizes intangibles and related implementation cost where it is reasonably estimated that the intangible asset has an
enduring useful life. Intangibles are amortized over their estimated useful life of 5 - 6 years.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Firm and the amount of the revenue
can be reliably measured with no uncertainty as regards to ultimate collection. 

Revenue is recognised and accounted on rendering of services in accordance with the terms of arrangement by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract.



Centrum REMA LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements  for the year ended and as at 31 March 2020
(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

2.g Investments

2.h Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans:

Defined benefit plans:

Compensated absences:

2.i Cash and cash equivalents

2.j Borrowing costs

2.k Taxation

Current income tax:

Deferred income tax:

2.l Provisions

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the taxes on income levied by same governing taxation laws.
Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. In situations where the Company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry
forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can
be realized against future taxable profits.

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to
its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current investments. All other
investments are classified as long-term investments. Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value determined on an
individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize
a decline, other than temporary, in the value of the investments.

Under Payment of Gratuity Act,1972 ‘Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial
valuation on Projected Unit Credit Method made at the end of the financial year’. The Company records its gratuity liability based on an
actuarial valuation made by an independent actuary as at year end.

Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation is done as per Projected Unit
Credit Method. 

All actuarial gains / losses are immediately taken to the Profit and Loss account and are not deferred.

Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund are a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the contributions to the fund is due. There are no other obligations other than the
contribution payable to the fund.

Cash and cash equivalents in the Cash Flow Statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term investments with an original
maturity of three months or less.

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which these are incurred. Borrowing Costs that are attributable to the
acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of such assets.

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act,
1961.

The taxation payable on profits of the Firm is the personal liability of the members and is not dealt with the financial statements. A
retention from profit distribution is made to fund the taxation payments on behalf of partners. Tax expense comprises of current and
deferred tax.

Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the
year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.



Centrum REMA LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended and as at 31 March 2020
(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

9. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Gross Block
As at 1st April, 2018 3,77,950                44,000                   56,690                    4,78,640                 
Additions - Mar 19 8,27,435                4,62,900                83,000                    13,73,335               
Disposals - Mar 19 -                          -                         -                          -                          
As at 31st Mar, 2019 12,05,385              5,06,900                1,39,690                18,51,975               
Additions - Mar 20 1,93,539                5,40,199                -                          7,33,738                 
Disposals - Mar 20 -                          -                         -                          -                          
As at 31st Mar, 2020 13,98,924              10,47,099              1,39,690                25,85,713               

Accumulated Depreciation 
As at 1st April, 2018 7,962                      12                           799                         8,773                      
Additions - Mar 19 2,83,959                30,640                   21,215                    3,35,814                 
Disposals - Mar 19 -                          -                         -                          -                          
As at 31st Mar, 2019 2,91,921                30,652                   22,014                    3,44,587                 
Additions - Mar 20 4,23,637                75,567                   26,604                    5,25,808                 
Disposals - Mar 20 -                          -                         -                          -                          
As at 31st Mar, 2020 7,15,558                1,06,219                48,618                    8,70,395                 

Net Block
As at 31st Mar, 2020 6,83,366                9,40,880                91,072                    17,15,318               
As at 31st Mar, 2019 9,13,464                4,76,248                1,17,676                15,07,388               

10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Gross Block
As at 1st April, 2018 73,843                   -                          73,843                    
Additions - Mar 19 -                         27,01,428              27,01,428               
Disposals - Mar 19 -                         -                          -                          
As at 31st Mar, 2019 73,843                   27,01,428              27,75,271               
Additions - Mar 20 -                         -                          -                          
Disposals - Mar 20 -                         -                          -                          
As at 31st Mar, 2020 73,843                   27,01,428              27,75,271               

Accumulated Depreciation 
As at 1st April, 2018 32                           -                          32                            
Additions - Mar 19 19,768                   1,81,868                 2,01,636                 
Disposals - Mar 19 -                         -                          -                          
As at 31st Mar, 2019 19,800                   1,81,868                2,01,668                 
Additions - Mar 20 10,200                   5,14,679                 5,24,879                 
Disposals - Mar 20 -                         -                          -                          
As at 31st Mar, 2020 30,000                   6,96,547                7,26,547                 

Net Block
As at 31st Mar, 2020 43,843                   20,04,881              20,48,724               
As at 31st Mar, 2019 54,043                   25,19,560              25,73,603               

Particulars
Computers - 

Software
Intangibles - 

Website 
Total

Particulars
Computers - 

Hardware
Furniture and 

Fixtures
Office equipments Total



Centrum REMA LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended and as at 31 March 2020
(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

3. PARTNERS CONTRIBUTION As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Capital Account
Centrum Alternatives LLP 99,000                   99,000                  
Harish Sharma 1,000                      1,000                    
Total 1,00,000                1,00,000              
Current Account
Centrum Alternatives LLP

Opening Balance -5,39,26,092         -1,36,54,194       
Add: (Loss) during the year -3,79,47,929         -4,02,71,898       
Closing Balance -9,18,74,021         -5,39,26,092       

Harish Sharma
Opening Balance -73,53,559            -18,61,936           
Add: (Loss) during the year -51,74,718            -54,91,623           
Closing Balance -1,25,28,277         -73,53,559           

Total -10,44,02,298      -6,12,79,651       

4. LONG-TERM PROVISIONS As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 8,59,320                3,32,644               
Compensated absences 5,50,017                3,24,523               

Total 14,09,337             6,57,167              

5. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Unsecured Loans
From Related Parties 9,59,71,507          7,01,00,000         

Total 9,59,71,507          7,01,00,000         

6. TRADE PAYABLES As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises -                          -                         
Dues to other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 46,03,360             4,53,394               
Total 46,03,360             4,53,394              

7. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Deferred Income 10,50,000             -                         
Statutory dues payable 26,79,872             10,93,602            
Other payables 75,04,361             61,14,826            
Total 1,12,34,233          72,08,428            

8. SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 13,699                   934                        
Compensated absences 1,28,604                14,307                  

Total 1,42,303                15,241                  



Centrum REMA LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended and as at 31 March 2020
(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

11. LONG TERM LOAN & ADVANCES As at As at
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated) 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Advance Tax [Net off Provision for Tax - Nil, (Previous year - Nil)] 33,89,074             9,48,592               
Total 33,89,074             9,48,592              

12. TRADE RECEIVABLES As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from due date
Considered good -                          -                         
Considered doubtful -                          -                         

Other trade receivables
Considered good 4,87,022                98,43,967            
Considered doubtful -                          -                         
Less: Provision for doubtful debts -                          -                         

Total 4,87,022                98,43,967            

13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Cash and cash equivalents 
Balances with banks -In current accounts 90,900                   23,80,515            
Cash on hand -                          514                        

Total 90,900                   23,81,029            

14. SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES As at As at
(Unsecured, considered good) 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Balances with Government authorities 11,99,153             -                         
Total 11,99,153             -                         

15. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Others 1,28,251                -                         
Total 1,28,251                -                         

16. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Distribution and Marketing Fees 6,74,74,597          2,15,59,263         
Total 6,74,74,597          2,15,59,263         

17. OTHER INCOME Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Project Management and Marketing Fees 40,35,568             18,56,267            
Recovery of Expenses 1,97,917                -                         
Total 42,33,485             18,56,267            



Centrum REMA LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended and as at 31 March 2020
(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

18. DIRECT COST OF SALES Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Project Cost 1,85,15,077          1,45,27,058         
Total 1,85,15,077          1,45,27,058         

19. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Salaries, allowances and bonus 5,72,12,285          4,02,68,754         
Contributions to provident and other fund 25,01,384             18,52,865            
Staff welfare expenses 7,15,891                3,47,269               
Total 6,04,29,560          4,24,68,888         

20. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 5,25,808                3,35,814               
Amortisation on intangible assets 5,24,879                2,01,636               
Total 10,50,687             5,37,450              

21. FINANCE COSTS Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Interest on Borrowings 96,76,615             1,49,762               
Total 96,76,615             1,49,762              

22. OTHER EXPENSES Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Rent 52,47,172             50,13,630            
Electricity 3,88,406                3,26,523               
Software Expenses 3,68,908                5,35,267               
Marketing and Business promotion Expenses 3,82,896                2,00,990               
Subscription and membership fees 7,16,250                3,73,213               
Travelling and conveyance 6,79,319                8,03,725               
Recruitment Fees -                          2,49,984               
Communication costs 2,33,971                2,15,178               
Printing and stationery 1,12,718                56,526                  
Shared Support Services Expenses 60,00,000             -                         
Professional Consultancy Expenses 21,46,312             -                         
Legal & professional fees 72,45,844             26,04,180            
Audit fees (Refer note below) 2,01,425                1,50,000               
Office Expenses 12,13,148             7,68,059               
Miscellaneous expenses 2,22,421                1,98,618               
Total 2,51,58,790          1,14,95,893         

Note: Auditors' remuneration
Audit Fees - Statutory Audit 2,00,000                1,50,000               
Out of Pocket Expenses 1,425                      -                         

Total 2,01,425                1,50,000              



Centrum REMA LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended and as at 31 March 2020
(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

23. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

A. Defined Contribution Plans

The expense recognised during the year towards defined contribution plan
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Employer’s Contribution to Provident Fund 18,53,134          15,48,867           
Provident Fund Administration charges 1,08,809            89,244                

B. Defined Benefit Plans

(i) Actuarial Assumptions
As at As at

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Discount rate 6.56% 7.79%
Salary Growth rate

- for Next 2 years 0.00% 5.00%
- for 3rd year 6.26% 5.00%
- from 4th year onwards 5.00% 5.00%

Rate of Employee Turnover 10.00% 3.00%
Mortality IALM(2006-08) IALM(2006-08)

(ii) Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 3,33,578            1,18,824             
Current Service Cost 3,87,401            3,47,709             
Past service cost -                      -                       
Interest Cost 25,986                9,185                   
Actuarial (Gain) / Losses due to Change in Financial Assumptions 21,471                -3,026                 
Actuarial (Gain)/ Losses due to Change in Experience 1,44,224            -1,46,918            
Actuarial (Gain)/ Losses due to Change in Demographic Assumptions -39,641              7,804                   
Benefits paid -                      -                       
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 8,73,019            3,33,578             

(iii) Changes in the fair value of the plan assets
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Opening fair value of plan assets -                      -                      
Expected returns on Plan Assets -                      -                      
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on Plan assets -                      -                      
Contribution from Employer -                      -                      
Benefits paid -                      -                      
Closing fair value of the plan asset -                     -                      

(iv) Actuarial (Gains)/Losses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss for Current Period
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period 1,26,054            -1,42,140            
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Plan Asset For the Period -                      -                       
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss 1,26,054            -1,42,140            

(v) Actual Return on Plan Assets
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Expected Return on Plan Assets -                      -                      
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Plan Assets -                      -                      
Actual Return on Plan Assets -                      -                      

The LLP provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period
of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination/resignation/superannuation is the employees last
drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service subject to payment ceiling
of INR 20 Lakhs. The gratuity plan is a Unfunded plan.

The LLP also contributes on a defined contribution basis to employees' provident fund. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for
employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the
government. The obligation of the LLP is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation.

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars



Centrum REMA LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended and as at 31 March 2020
(All amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

(vi) Net Asset /(Liability) recognised as at balance sheet date
As at As at

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year -8,73,019           -3,33,578            
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year -                      -                       
Net (Liability)/Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet -8,73,019           -3,33,578            

(vii) Expenses recognised in statement of  profit and loss during the year
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Current Service Cost 3,87,401            3,47,709             
Past Service Cost -                      -                       
Expected return on plan assets -                      -                       
Interest cost on benefit obligation 25,986                9,185                   
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 1,26,054            -1,42,140            
Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss 5,39,441            2,14,754             

(viii) Balance Sheet Reconciliation
As at As at

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Opening Net Liability 3,33,578            1,18,824             
Expense Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss 5,39,441            2,14,754             
Net Liability/(Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet 8,73,019            3,33,578             

24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(i) List of Related Parties:

Relationship Name of the Parties
1. Holding Company of the partner - Centrum Alternatives LLP Centrum Capital Limited
2. Partner Centrum Alternatives LLP
3. Fellow Subsidiaries of partner's holding company Centrum Capital Advisors Limited

Centrum Retail Services Limited
Centrum Financial Services Limited
Club7 Holidays Limited

4. Designated Partner Harish Sharma

(ii) Details of transactions

Year ended Year ended As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Centrum Capital Limited ICD (Loan taken) 2,89,00,000       1,40,00,000        -4,29,00,000      -1,40,00,000      
Interest on ICD 35,63,830          1,49,762             -                      -                       
Insurance Expenses 96,320                -                       -                      -                       

Centrum Alternatives LLP ICD (Loan taken) 21,70,000          5,76,75,000        -4,75,70,000      -5,61,00,000      
ICD (Loan repaid) 1,07,00,000       1,20,75,000        -                      -                       
Interest Expenses on Loan 61,12,785          -                       -55,01,507         -                       
Professional Consultancy Expenses 11,86,631          -                       -                      -                       
Distribution of Share of Loss 3,79,47,929       4,02,71,898        9,18,74,021       5,39,26,092       

Centrum Capital Advisors Limited Professional Consultancy Expenses
9,21,199            -                       -                      -                       

Centrum Retail Services Limited Support services fees 60,00,000          -                       -                      -                       
Salary Recharge Cost 38,482                -                       -                      -                       
Rent Cost 52,47,172          50,13,630           -                      -                       
Electricity Cost 3,88,406            3,26,523             -25,494              -                       
Telephone Expenses 22,171                7,822                   -1,943                 -                       
Office Expenses 48,298                -                       -                      -                       

Centrum Financial Services Limited
Subscription Charges 1,22,500            3,67,500             -                      -                       

Recovery of expenses 1,97,917            -                       1,28,251            -                       

Club7 Holidays Limited Travelling Expenses 10,434                -                       -10,434              -                       

Harish Sharma Remuneration given 90,00,000          90,00,000           -                      -                       
Distribution of Share of Loss 51,74,718          54,91,623           1,25,28,277       73,53,559           

 Transaction during Receivable / (Payable)

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Name of the related party Description
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended and as at 31 March 2020
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25.

26.

27.

28.

29. The figures for the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary to conform to current year’s classification.

As per our report of even date

For M/s Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Centrum REMA LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 103523W / W100048

Sumant Sakhardande Jaspal Singh Bindra Harish Sharma
Partner On behalf of Centrum Alternatives LLP Designated Partner
Membership No.: 034828 DPIN: 00128320 DPIN: 07295282

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date  : Jul 07, 2020 Date  : Jul 07, 2020

Pursuant to the Supplementary Agreement dated June 4, 2019 of Centrum REMA LLP executed between Harish Sharma and Centrum Alternatives
LLP, Mr. Jaspal Bindra has been nominated by Centrum Alternatives LLP to act as Designated Partner of Centrum REMA LLP on behalf of Centrum
Alternative LLP.

The LLP has accumulated losses of Rs. 10,44,02,298 as at March 31, 2020. These conditions, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the LLP’s ability to continue as a going concern. The financial statements are prepared on going concern basis as based on the
projected operations and the LLP’s marketing efforts, the LLP expects to generate adequate surplus in the future and consequently does not foresee
any difficulty in settling its liabilities as and when they arise. Further, the partners continue to support the LLP in its operations and financial
management.

The LLP has a process of identification of ‘suppliers’ registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (‘MSMED’) Act, 2006,
by obtaining confirmations from all suppliers. The LLP has not received intimation from all the ‘suppliers’ regarding their status under MSMED Act,
2006 and hence disclosures if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid/payable as required have not been
furnished.

Deferred Tax Assets was not recognised considering the principle of virtual certainty as stated in the Accounting Standards AS-22 - Accounting for
taxes on Income.



 

Haribhakti & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants Regn. No. AAC- 3768, a limited liability partnership registered in India (converted on 17th June, 
2014 from a firm Haribhakti & Co. FRN: 103523W) 
Registered offices: 705, Leela Business Park, Andheri-Kurla Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai – 400 059, India. Tel:+91 22 6672 9999 Fax:+91 22 6672 
9777 
Other offices: Ahmedabad, Bengaluru, Chennai, Hyderabad, Kolkata, New Delhi. 

 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Partners of Centrum REMA LLP 

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Centrum REMA LLP (“the LLP”), 

which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including 

Other Comprehensive Income) and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes 

to the Ind AS financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 

explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Ind AS financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Limited Liability 

Partnership Act, 2008 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting 

Standards (“Ind AS”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”), of the state 

of affairs of the LLP as at March 31, 2020, its loss (including other comprehensive income) and its 

cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by the ICAI. Our 

responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 

Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the LLP in 

accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI together with the ethical requirements that 

are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules 

thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements. 

 

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern  

We draw attention to Note 34 in the Ind AS financial statements regarding preparation of the LLP’s 

Ind AS financial statements on a going concern assumption. The LLP has incurred a net loss of Rs. 

430.70 lakhs including other comprehensive income during the year ended March 31, 2020 and as on 

that date the LLP’s accumulated losses amount to Rs. 1,044.04 lakhs resulting in negative net worth 

of the LLP. These conditions, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant 

doubt on the LLP’s ability to continue as a going concern. The financial statements are prepared on 

going concern basis as based on the projected operations and the LLP’s marketing efforts, the LLP 

expects to generate adequate surplus in the future and consequently does not foresee any difficulty 

in settling its liabilities as and when they arise. Further, the partners continue to support the LLP in 

its operations and financial management.  

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
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Responsibilities of the Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements 
 
The LLP’s Management (designated partners) is responsible for the preparation of the Ind AS Financial 
Statements in accordance with the Rule 24 of the Limited Liability Partnership Rules, 2009 (“the 
Rules”), and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of the Statement of Accounts that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, LLP’s Management are responsible for assessing the 
LLP’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless LLP’s Management either intends to 
liquidate the LLP or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 

Management is also responsible for overseeing the LLP’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as 

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 

or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 

taken on the basis of this Ind AS financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 

and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the LLP’s internal financial control. 

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by LLP’s Management. 

•  Conclude on the appropriateness of LLP’s Management use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the LLP’s ability to continue 

as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 

attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, 

if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 

may cause the LLP to cease to continue as a going concern. 
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•  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the LLP’s Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide LLP’s Management with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards. 

This report has been prepared only for the Management of the LLP for the purpose of preparation of 

the Consolidated Financial Results by Centrum Capital Limited. We do not accept or assume 

responsibility for any other purpose except as expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing. 

 

 

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W / W100048 

 

____________________ 

Sumant Sakhardande 

Partner 

Membership No. 034828 

UDIN: 20034828AAAACX7427 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : June 22, 2020 

 



Centrum REMA LLP
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18

ASSETS

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 0.91                      23.81                    3.22                      
Trade receivables 4 4.87                      97.90                    -                        
Other financial assets 5 1.28                      -                        -                        

7.06                      121.71                  3.22                      
Non-financial Assets
Current Tax Assets (net) 6 33.89                    9.49                      -                        
Property, plant & equipment 7 17.15                    15.07                    4.70                      
Intangible assets under development -                        -                        3.56                      
Other Intangible assets 8 20.48                    25.73                    0.74                      
Other non-financial assets 9 11.99                    -                        8.29                      

83.51                    50.29                    17.29                    

Total 90.57                    172.00                  20.51                    
LIABILITIES AND CONTRIBUTION

LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables 10

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -                        -                        -                        

46.03                    4.53                      0.38                      

Borrowings 11 959.72                  701.00                  105.00                  
Other financial liabilities 12 75.04                    61.15                    54.67                    

1,080.79               766.68                  160.05                  

Non-Financial Liabilities
Provisions 13 15.52                    6.72                      3.23                      
Other non-financial liabilities 14 37.30                    10.94                    11.39                    

52.82                    17.66                    14.62                    
Partners’ funds
Capital Account 15 1.00                      1.00                      1.00                      
Current Account 15 -1,044.04             -613.34                 -155.16                 

-1,043.04             -612.34                 -154.16                 

Total 90.57                    172.00                  20.51                    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

For M/s Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Centrum REMA LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 103523W / W100048

Sumant Sakhardande Harish Sharma Jaspal Singh Bindra
Partner Designated Partner On behalf of Centrum Alternatives LLP
Membership No.: 034828 DPIN: 07295282 DPIN: 00128320

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date  : Jun 22, 2020 Date  : Jun 22, 2020

Particulars Note No.

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises



Centrum REMA LLP
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

REVENUE

Revenue from operations 16 674.75                  215.59                  
Other Income 17 42.33                    72.56                    
Impairment gain on financial assets 18 0.54                      -                        
Total revenue 717.62                  288.15                  
EXPENSES

Finance costs 19 96.77                    1.50                      
Direct cost of sales 20 185.15                  199.27                  
Employee benefit expenses 21 603.04                  426.11                  
Depreciation and amortisation expense 22 10.51                    5.37                      
Impairment loss on financial assets 23 -                        0.54                      
Other expenses 24 251.59                  114.96                  
Total expenses 1,147.06              747.75                  

Profit/(Loss) before tax -429.44                -459.60                
Income tax expense

- Current tax -                        -                        
- Deferred tax -                        -                        

Profit/(Loss) for the year -429.44                -459.60                

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

 I.  Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation -1.26                     1.42                      
 II. Income Tax relating to above items -                        -                        

Other comprehensive income for the year -1.26                     1.42                      

Total comprehensive income for the year -430.70                -458.18                

Appropriation of Loss %
Centrum Alternatives LLP 88 -379.02                -403.20                
Harish Sharma 12 -51.68                   -54.98                   

-430.70                -458.18                

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

For M/s Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Centrum REMA LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 103523W / W100048

Sumant Sakhardande Harish Sharma Jaspal Singh Bindra
Partner Designated Partner On behalf of Centrum Alternatives LLP
Membership No.: 034828 DPIN: 07295282 DPIN: 00128320

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date  : Jun 22, 2020 Date  : Jun 22, 2020

Particulars Note No.



Centrum REMA LLP
Statement of changes in Partners' capital for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Partners' Capital account

As at 1st Apr, 2018 1.00                        
Addition -                          
Withdrawal -                          

As at 31st March, 2019 1.00                        
Addition -                          
Withdrawal -                          
As at 31st March, 2020 1.00                        

B. Partners' Current account

As at 1st Apr, 2018 -155.16                  -155.16                  
Loss for the year -459.60                  -459.60                  
Other comprehensive income 1.42                        1.42                        
As at 31st March, 2019 -613.34                  -613.34                  
Loss for the year -429.44                  -429.44                  
Other comprehensive income -1.26                       -1.26                       
As at 31st March, 2020 -1,044.04               -1,044.04               

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

For M/s Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Centrum REMA LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 103523W / W100048

Sumant Sakhardande Harish Sharma Jaspal Singh Bindra
Partner Designated Partner On behalf of Centrum Alternatives LLP
Membership No.: 034828 DPIN: 07295282 DPIN: 00128320

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date  : Jun 22, 2020 Date  : Jun 22, 2020

Particulars Total

Particulars Retained Earnings Total



Centrum REMA LLP
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation -429.44                 -459.60                 
Add / (Less) : Adjustments for

Interest expenses 96.77                    1.50                       
Depreciation and Amortisation 10.51                    5.37                       
Impairment losses/(gain) on financial assets -0.54                     0.54                       

Operating loss before working capital changes -322.70                 -452.19                 

Adjustments for:
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivable 93.03                    -97.90                   
Increase in other financial asset -0.74                     -0.54                     
Decrease in other non-financial assets -11.99                   8.29                       
Increase in trade payable 41.50                    4.15                       
Increase in other financial liabilities 7.42                       7.00                       
Increase/(Decrease) in other non-financial liabilities 26.36                    -0.45                     
Increase in provisions 8.80                       3.49                       

Net cash used in Operations -158.32                 -528.15                 
Taxes paid 24.40                    9.49                       
Net cash used in Operating Activities  ( A ) -182.73                 -537.64                 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets -8.23                     -36.28                   
Net cash used in Investing Activities ( B ) -8.23                     -36.28                   

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Borrowings 310.70                  716.75                  
Repayment of Borrowings -107.00                 -120.75                 
Interest paid -35.64                   -1.50                     
Net cash generated from Financing Activities ( C ) 168.06                  594.50                  

Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents (A+B+C) -22.90                   20.59                    
As at the beginning of the year 23.81                    3.22                       
Closing cash and cash equivalents 0.91                       23.81                    

As at the end of the year (refer note 3)
Cash in hand including foreign currencies -                         0.01                       
Balance with scheduled banks-Current accounts 0.91                       23.81                    
Closing cash and cash equivalents 0.91                       23.81                    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

For M/s Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Centrum REMA LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 103523W / W100048

Sumant Sakhardande Harish Sharma Jaspal Singh Bindra
Partner Designated Partner On behalf of Centrum Alternatives LLP
Membership No.: 034828 DPIN: 07295282 DPIN: 00128320

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date  : Jun 22, 2020 Date  : Jun 22, 2020

Particulars

The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) -7
statement of cash flows.



Centrum REMA LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended and as at 31 March 2020
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

7. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Gross Block
Deemed cost As at 1st April, 2018 3.70                           0.44                            0.56                         4.70                           
Additions - Mar 19 8.27                           4.63                            0.83                         13.73                        
Disposals - Mar 19 -                             -                              -                           -                             
As at 31st Mar, 2019 11.97                        5.07                            1.39                         18.43                        
Additions - Mar 20 1.94                           5.40                            -                           7.34                           
Disposals - Mar 20 -                             -                              -                           -                             
As at 31st Mar, 2020 13.91                        10.47                          1.39                         25.77                        

Accumulated Depreciation 
Additions - Mar 19 2.84                           0.31                            0.21                         3.36                           
Disposals - Mar 19 -                             -                              -                           -                             
As at 31st Mar, 2019 2.84                           0.31                            0.21                         3.36                           
Additions - Mar 20 4.24                           0.75                            0.27                         5.26                           
Disposals - Mar 20 -                             -                              -                           -                             
As at 31st Mar, 2020 7.07                           1.06                            0.48                         8.62                           

Net Block
As at 31st Mar, 2020 6.84                           9.41                            0.91                         17.15                        
As at 31st Mar, 2019 9.13                           4.76                            1.18                         15.07                        

8. Intangible Assets

Gross Block
Deemed cost As at 1st April, 2018 0.74                            -                           0.74                           
Additions - Mar 19 -                              27.01                      27.01                        
Disposals - Mar 19 -                              -                           -                             
As at 31st Mar, 2019 0.74                            27.01                      27.75                        
Additions - Mar 20 -                              -                           -                             
Disposals - Mar 20 -                              -                           -                             
As at 31st Mar, 2020 0.74                            27.01                      27.75                        

Accumulated Depreciation 
Additions - Mar 19 0.20                            1.82                         2.02                           
Disposals - Mar 19 -                              -                           -                             
As at 31st Mar, 2019 0.20                            1.82                         2.02                           
Additions - Mar 20 0.10                            5.15                         5.25                           
Disposals - Mar 20 -                              -                           -                             
As at 31st Mar, 2020 0.30                            6.97                         7.27                           

Net Block
As at 31st Mar, 2020 0.44                            20.04                      20.48                        
As at 31st Mar, 2019 0.54                            25.19                      25.73                        

Computers - 
Software

Intangibles - 
Website 

TotalParticulars

Computers - 
Hardware

Furnitures and 
Fixtures

Office 
equipments

TotalParticulars
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3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS As at As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18

Cash on hand -                        0.01                      -                        
Balances with banks - In current accounts 0.91                      23.81                   3.22                      
Total 0.91                      23.81                   3.22                      

4. TRADE RECEIVABLES As at As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18

Unsecured, Considered good 4.87                      98.44                   -                        
Less: Impairment provision -                        -0.54                    -                        
Total 4.87                      97.90                   -                        

5. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS As at As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18

Other assets 1.28                      -                        -                        
Total 1.28                      -                        -                        

6. CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET) As at As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18

Advance Tax [Net off Provision for Tax - Nil, (Previous year - Nil)] 33.89                   9.49                      -                        
Total 33.89                   9.49                      -                        

9. OTHER NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS As at As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

Balances with Government authorities 11.99                   -                        8.29                      
Total 11.99                   -                        8.29                      

10. TRADE PAYABLES As at As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -                       -                       -                       
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 46.03                   4.53                      0.38                      
Total 46.03                   4.53                      0.38                      

11. BORROWINGS As at As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18

(At amortised cost, within India)
Unsecured Loans from related parties 959.72                 701.00                 105.00                 
Total 959.72                 701.00                 105.00                 
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12. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES As at As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18

Employee Benefits 26.40                   9.01                      2.35                      
Other Dues 48.64                   52.14                   52.32                   
Total 75.04                   61.15                   54.67                   

13. PROVISIONS As at As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18

Provision for employee benefits
Provisions for Gratuity 8.73                      3.34                      1.19                      
Provisions for Compensated Absences 6.79                      3.39                      2.05                      
Total 15.52                   6.72                      3.23                      

14. OTHER NON-FINANCIAL LIABILITIES As at As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18

Statutory dues payable 26.80                   10.94                   11.39                   
Deferred Income 10.50                   -                        -                        
Total 37.30                   10.94                   11.39                   

15. PARTNERS CONTRIBUTION As at As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18

Capital Account
` Centrum Alternatives LLP 0.99                      0.99                      0.99                      

Harish Sharma 0.01                      0.01                      0.01                      
Total 1.00                      1.00                      1.00                      
Current Account
Centrum Alternatives LLP

Opening Balance -539.74                -136.54                -                        
Add: (Loss) during the year -379.02                -403.20                -136.54                
Closing Balance -918.76                -539.74                -136.54                

Harish Sharma
Opening Balance -73.60                  -18.62                  -                        
Add: (Loss) during the year -51.68                  -54.98                  -18.62                  
Closing Balance -125.28                -73.60                  -18.62                  

Total -1,044.04             -613.34                -155.16                
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16. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS Year ended Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

Distribution and Marketing Fees 674.75                 215.59                 -                        
Total 674.75                 215.59                 -                        

17. OTHER INCOME Year ended Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

Project Management and Marketing Fees 40.36                   72.56                   -                        
Recovery of Expenses 1.98                      -                        -                        
Total 42.33                   72.56                   -                        

18. IMPAIRMENT GAIN ON FINANCIAL ASSETS Year ended Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

Impairment on trade receivables 0.54                      -                        -                        
Total 0.54                      -                        -                        

19. FINANCE COSTS Year ended Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

Interest on Borrowings 96.77                   1.50                      -                        
Total 96.77                   1.50                      -                        

20. DIRECT COST OF SALES Year ended Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

Project Cost 185.15                 199.27                 -                        
Total 185.15                 199.27                 -                        

21. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE Year ended Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

Salaries, allowances and bonus 572.12                 402.69                 99.70                   
Contributions to provident and other fund 23.75                   19.95                   6.16                      
Staff welfare expenses 7.16                      3.47                      0.44                      
Total 603.04                 426.11                 106.30                 

22. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE Year ended Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 5.26                      3.35                      0.09                      
Amortisation on other intangible assets 5.25                      2.02                      0.00                      
Total 10.51                   5.37                      0.09                      
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23. IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS Year ended Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

Impairment on trade receivables -                        0.54                      -                        
Total -                        0.54                      -                        

24. OTHER EXPENSES Year ended Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

Rent 52.47                   50.14                   5.88                      
Electricity 3.88                      3.27                      -                        
Telephone Expenses 2.34                      2.15                      0.35                      
Software Expenses 3.69                      5.35                      -                        
Marketing and Business promotion Expenses 3.83                      2.01                      0.21                      
Subscription and membership fees 7.16                      3.73                      -                        
Travelling and conveyance 6.79                      8.04                      2.22                      
Recruitment Fees -                        2.50                      -                        
Printing and stationery 1.13                      0.57                      2.56                      
Shared Support Services Expenses 60.00                   -                        -                        
Professional Consultancy Expenses 21.46                   -                        -                        
Legal & professional fees 72.46                   26.04                   33.94                   
Audit fees (Refer note below) 2.01                      1.50                      0.75                      
Office Expenses 12.26                   8.08                      0.26                      
Miscellaneous expenses 2.09                      1.58                      2.62                      
Total 251.59                 114.96                 48.77                   

Note: Auditors' remuneration
Audit Fees - Statutory Audit 2.00                      1.50                      0.75                      
Out of Pocket Expenses 0.01                      -                        

Total 2.01                      1.50                      0.75                      
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25. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The LLP's adjusted net debt to capital ratio is as follows.

As at As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18

Borrowings
Long term and Short term borrowings 959.72                 701.00                 105.00                 
Less: cash and cash equivalents 0.91                     23.81                    3.22                      
Adjusted net debt 958.81                 677.19                 101.78                 
Total Partners' Capital -1,043.04            -612.34                -154.16                
Adjusted net debt to adjusted partners' capital ratio -92% -111% -66%

26. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

A. Defined Contribution Plans

The expense recognised during the year towards defined contribution plan
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Employer’s Contribution to Provident Fund 18.53                   15.49                   
Provident Fund Administration charges 1.09                     0.89                     

B. Defined Benefit Plans

(i) Expenses recognised in statement of  profit and loss during the year
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Current Service Cost 3.87                     3.48                     
Past Service Cost -                       -                       
Expected return on plan assets -                       -                       
Interest cost on benefit obligation 0.26                     0.09                     

Total Expenses 4.13                     3.57                     

(ii) Expenses recognised in OCI
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Actuarial (Gain) / Losses due to Change in Financial Assumptions 0.21                     (0.03)                    
Actuarial (Gain)/ Losses due to Change in Experience 1.44                     (1.47)                    
Actuarial (Gain)/ Losses due to Change in Demographic Assumptions (0.40)                    0.08                     
Return on Plan Assets (Greater) / Less than Discount rate -                       -                       

Total Expenses 1.26                     (1.42)                    

(iii) Net Asset /(Liability) recognised as at balance sheet date
As at As at As at

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year (8.73)                   (3.34)                    1.19                     
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year -                       -                       -                       
Funded status [Surplus/(Deficit)] (8.73)                   (3.34)                    1.19                     
Net (Liability)/Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet (8.73)                   (3.34)                    1.19                     

Particulars

The LLP provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are
eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination/resignation/superannuation is the employees last drawn basic salary per month
computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service subject to payment ceiling of INR 20 Lakhs. The gratuity plan is a Unfunded
plan.

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

The primary objective of the LLP’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and maximize partner value.

The LLP manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions, annual operating plans and long term and other strategic
investment plans. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the partners may infuse additional capital. The LLP is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019. 

The LLP monitors capital using a ratio of 'adjusted net debt' to 'equity'. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing
loans and borrowings  less cash and cash equivalents. Equity comprises Partners capital and reserves attributable to the partners.

Particulars

The LLP also contributes on a defined contribution basis to employees' provident fund. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of
12% of basic salary as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the LLP is limited to
the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. 
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(iv) Movements in present value of defined benefit obligation
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 3.34                     1.19                     
Current Service Cost 3.87                     3.48                     
Past service cost -                       -                       
Interest Cost 0.26                     0.09                     
Actuarial (Gain) / Losses due to Change in Financial Assumptions 0.21                     (0.03)                    
Actuarial (Gain)/ Losses due to Change in Experience 1.44                     (1.47)                    
Actuarial (Gain)/ Losses due to Change in Demographic Assumptions (0.40)                    0.08                     
Benefits paid -                       -                       
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 8.73                     3.34                     

(v) Movements in fair value of the plan assets
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Opening fair value of plan assets -                       -                       
Expected returns on Plan Assets -                       -                       
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on Plan assets -                       -                       
Contribution from Employer -                       -                       
Benefits paid -                       -                       
Closing fair value of the plan asset -                       -                       

(vi) Maturity Analysis of defined benefit obligation

As at As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18

1st following year 0.14                    0.01                     0.00                     
2nd following year 0.12                    0.01                     0.00                     
3rd following year 0.14                    0.01                     0.00                     
4th following year 0.97                    0.01                     0.01                     
5th following year 1.10                    0.19                     0.01                     
Sum of years 6-10 4.68                    1.09                     0.58                     
Sum of years 11 and above 10.60                  12.02                   3.28                     

(vii) Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions
As at As at As at

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18
Increase/(decrease) on present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year
(i)    +100 basis points increase in discount rate (0.74)                   (0.46)                    (0.14)                    
(i)    -100 basis points decrease in discount rate 0.85                    0.55                     0.17                     
(iii) +100 basis points increase in rate of salary increase 0.87                    0.56                     0.17                     
(iv)  -100 basis points  decrease in rate of salary increase (0.61)                   (0.47)                    (0.15)                    
(v)   -100 basis points  decrease in rate of Employee Turnover (0.20)                   (0.03)                    (0.04)                    
(v)   -100 basis points  decrease in rate of Employee Turnover 0.19                    0.01                     0.03                     

Sensitivity analysis method

(viii) Actuarial Assumptions
As at As at As at

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18
Discount rate 6.56% 7.79% 7.73%
Salary Growth rate

- for Next 2 years 0.00% 5.00% 5.00%
- for 3rd year 6.26% 5.00% 5.00%
- from 4th year onwards 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

Rate of Employee Turnover 10.00% 3.00% 5.00%
Mortality IALM(2006-08) IALM(2006-08) IALM(2006-08)

Particulars

Particulars

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 11 years (March, 2019 – 17 years). The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity is as
follows:

Particulars

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes
in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method
(present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting year) has been applied as when calculating
the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

Particulars

Particulars
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(ix) Risks associated with Defined Benefit Plan

1) Interest Rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision.

(x) Defined benefit liability and employer contributions
Expected contributions to post-employment benefit plans for the year ending 31 March 2021 are Rs Nil.

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(i) List of Related Parties:

Relationship Name of the Parties
1. Holding Company of the partner - Centrum Alternatives LLP Centrum Capital Limited
2. Partner Centrum Alternatives LLP
3. Fellow Subsidiaries of partner's holding company Centrum Capital Advisors Limited

Centrum Retail Services Limited
Centrum Financial Services Limited
Club7 Holidays Limited

4. Designated Partner Harish Sharma

(ii) Details of transactions

Year ended Year ended As at As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18

Centrum Capital Limited Advance Received -                       -                         -                       -                        -11.79                  
ICD (Loan taken) 289.00                 140.00                  -429.00               -140.00                -                        
Interest on ICD 35.64                   1.50                       -                       -                        -                        
Insurance Expenses 0.96                     -                         -                       -                        -                        

Centrum Alternatives LLP ICD (Loan taken) 21.70                   576.75                  -475.70               -561.00                -105.00                
ICD (Loan repaid) 107.00                 120.75                  -                       -                        -                        
Interest Expenses on Loan 61.13                   -                         -55.02                  -                        -                        
Professional Consultancy Expenses 11.87                   -                         -                       -                        -                        
Distribution of Share of Loss 379.02                 403.20                  918.76                 539.74                 136.54                 

Centrum Capital Advisors Limited Professional Consultancy Expenses
9.21                     -                         -                       -                        -                        

Centrum Retail Services Limited Support services fees
60.00                   -                         -                       -                        -11.17                  

Salary Recharge Cost 0.38                     -                         -                       -                        -21.62                  
Rent Cost 52.47                   50.14                     -                       -                        -6.35                     
Electricity Cost 3.88                     3.27                       -0.25                    -                        -                        
Telephone Expenses 0.22                     0.08                       -0.02                    -                        -                        
Office Expenses 0.48                     -                         -                       -                        -                        

Centrum Financial Services Limited Subscription Charges
1.23                     3.68                       -                       -                        -                        

Recovery of expenses 1.98                     -                         1.28                     -                        -                        

Club7 Holidays Limited Travelling Expenses 0.10                     -                         -0.10                    -                        -                        

Harish Sharma Remuneration given 90.00                   90.00                     -                       -                        -                        
Distribution of Share of Loss 51.68                   54.98                     125.28                 73.60                    18.62                    

2) Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase in the salary of
members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability. 

4) Mortality Risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only , plan does not have any longevity risk.

3) Asset Liability Matching Market Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flows. LLP has to manage pay-out based on pay as you go basis from own
funds.

Name of the related party Description
 Transaction during Receivable / (Payable)
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28. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Accounting classification and fair values
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities.

As at As at As at As at As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18 01-Apr-18

Carrying value Fair Value Carrying value Fair Value Carrying value Fair Value
Financial Assets (measured at amortized cost)
Trade receivables 4.87                      4.87                     97.90                     97.90                   -                        -                        
Cash and cash equivalents 0.91                      0.91                     23.81                     23.81                   3.22                      3.22                      
Other financial assets 1.28                      1.28                     -                         -                       -                        -                        
Total 7.06                      7.06                     121.71                  121.71                 3.22                      3.22                      
Financial Liabilities (measured at amortized cost)
Trade Payables 46.03                   46.03                  4.53                       4.53                     0.38                      0.38                      
Borrowings 959.72                 959.72                701.00                  701.00                 105.00                 105.00                 
Other financial liabilities 75.04                   75.04                  61.15                     61.15                   54.67                    54.67                    
Total 1,080.79             1,080.79            766.68                 766.68                160.05                160.05                

Measurement of fair value

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

A. Credit Risk

(i) Trade and Other financial assets

(ii) Cash and bank balances

B. Liquidity Risk

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the LLP’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.

Maturities of financial liabilities

Particulars 1 year or less > 1 year              Total
As at 31 March 2020
Borrowings 959.72                -                       959.72                
Trade Payables 46.03                  -                       46.03                   
Other financial liabilities 75.04                  -                       75.04                   
Total 1,080.79            -                       1,080.79             
As at 31 March 2019
Borrowings 701.00                -                       701.00                
Trade Payables 4.53                    -                       4.53                     
Other financial liabilities 61.15                  -                       61.15                   
Total 766.68                -                       766.68                
As at 1 Apr 2018
Borrowings 105.00                -                       105.00                
Trade Payables 0.38                    -                       0.38                     
Other financial liabilities 54.67                  -                       54.67                   
Total 160.05                -                       160.05                

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the LLP if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The carrying amounts of
financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

The LLP had trade and other financials assets of INR 6.15 Lakhs at March 31, 2020 (March 31, 2019: INR 97.90 Lakhs) which is being short term in nature hence no
provision is required to be made.

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include contractual
interest payments.

The LLP held cash and bank balance of INR 0.91 Lakhs at March 31, 2020 (March 31, 2019: INR 23.81 Lakhs). The same are held with bank and financial institution
counterparties with good credit rating therefore does not expose the LLP to credit risk.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the LLP will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The LLP's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the LLP's reputation.

Particulars

Management assessed that fair value of above financial asset and financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to short term maturities of these
instruments.

The LLP’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The LLP’s activities expose it to a variety of its financial risk
such as credit risk and liquidity risk. The LLP has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key business objectives. Major risks
identified are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis.
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C. Cash Flow and Fair Value Interest Rate Risk

D. Foreign Currency Risk

30. The reconciliations of partners' fund and total Comprehensive income in accordance with Previous GAAP to Ind AS are explained below:

A. Reconciliation of Partners' fund
As at As at

31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18
Total Partners’ funds as per Previous GAAP -611.80                -154.16                
Ind AS adjustments:

Impairment on trade receivables -0.54                     -                        
Total Partners’ funds as per Previous Ind AS -612.34                -154.16                

B. Reconciliation of total comprehensive income
Year ended
31-Mar-19

Net loss after tax as reported under Indian GAAP -457.64                
Ind AS adjustments:

Impairment on trade receivables -0.54                     
Reclass of remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation to OCI -1.26                     

Net loss as per Ind AS -459.44                
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation 1.26                      
Total Comprehensive loss as per Ind AS -458.18                

31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

As at As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18

Contingent liabilities and commitments Nil Nil Nil

32. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENT

Capital expenditure contracted for the reporting year net of capital advance amounting Rs. Nil (March 31, 2019 :  Nil).

33. SEGMENT REPORTING

34.

35. The figures for the previous year have been regrouped/ rearranged wherever necessary to conform to current year’s classification.

As per our report of even date

For M/s Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Centrum REMA LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 103523W / W100048

Sumant Sakhardande Harish Sharma Jaspal Singh Bindra
Partner Designated Partner On behalf of Centrum Alternatives LLP
Membership No.: 034828 DPIN: 07295282 DPIN: 00128320

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date  : Jun 22, 2020 Date  : Jun 22, 2020

The LLP has fixed rate borrowing. Fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since
neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The LLP's main
interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates.

The LLP has accumulated losses of Rs. 1,044.04 lakhs as at March 31, 2020. These conditions, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt
on the LLP’s ability to continue as a going concern. The financial statements are prepared on going concern basis as based on the projected operations and the LLP’s
marketing efforts, the LLP expects to generate adequate surplus in the future and consequently does not foresee any difficulty in settling its liabilities as and when they 
arise. Further, the partners continue to support the LLP in its operations and financial management.

Centrum REMA LLP is predominantly engaged in business of (a) selling apartments, commercial offices and plots for developers and financial institutions and to render
all other related support and incidental services like fund raising or marketing. (b) acting as advisors, investment advisors/managers, consultants, referral agent.
hence, there are no additional disclosures required under IND AS 108.The LLP’s operations are primarily in India, accordingly there is no reportable secondary
geographical segment.

Particulars

Particulars

The LLP caters mainly to the Indian Market . Most of the transactions are denominated in the LLP's functional currency i.e. Rupees. Hence the LLP is not exposed to
Foreign Currency Risk.

Particulars
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 

Centrum REMA LLP (the 'LLP') is a Limited Liability Partnership incorporated on 8th November, 2017 with 
its registered office located at Centrum House, CST Road, Vidyanagari Marg, Kalina, Santacruz (East), 
Mumbai 400098. 
 
The profit/loss sharing ratio as per the partnership deed is as flows: 

Partner           Ratio 

Mr. Harish Sharma 
    

12.00% 

Centrum Alternatives LLP       88.00% 

 
The Firm is carrying on the business: 
a) of selling apartments, commercial offices and plots for developers and financial institutions and to 

render all other related support and incidental services like fund raising or marketing. 
b) to act as advisors, investment advisors/managers, consultants, referral agent. 
 

2.        SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

(a) Basis of Preparation 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards 

(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

(ICAI). 

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.  
 

(b) Statement of Compliance 

 

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and 

other relevant provisions of the Act. 

 

(c) Presentation of financial statements 

 

The LLP presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement 

within 12 months after the reporting date and more than 12 months after the reporting date is 

presented in Notes to the financial statements. 

 

(d) Property, plant and equipment 

 

Properties, Plant & Equipment’s are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, amortization and 
impairment losses if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the 
asset to its working condition for its intended use.  
 
 
 
 
 



Depreciation 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight-line method over the useful lives 
of assets. 
 

Assets Estimated useful life  

Furniture and Fixtures 10 years 

Office Equipment 5 years 

Computers - Hardware 3 years 

  

 

(e) Intangible assets  
 
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Entity, which have finite useful lives, are measured at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition of the intangible asset.  
 
Subsequent expenditure 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in 
the specific assets to which it relates. All other expenditures are recognised in statement of profit and 
loss as incurred. 
  
Amortisation 
The LLP capitalizes software and related implementation cost where it is reasonably estimated that the 
software has an enduring useful life. Software’s including operating system licenses are amortized over 
their estimated useful life of 5 – 6 years. 
 

(f) Borrowing cost 
 
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete 
and prepare the asset for its intended use. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a 
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use. Other borrowing costs are expensed in 
the period in which they are incurred. 
 

(g) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
 
Consideration is given at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of 
impairment of the carrying amount of the LLP’s each class of the property, plant and equipment or 
intangible assets. If any indication exists, an asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment 
loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value based on an appropriate discount 
factor. 
 

(h) Revenue recognition 
 
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in the contract and recognised when it is 
highly probable that a significant reversal of revenue is not expected to occur. 
 
 
  



Income from services: 

Revenue is recognised and accounted on rendering of services in accordance with the terms of 

arrangement by reference to the stage of completion of the contract. 

Recognition of dividend income, interest income:  

Dividend income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on the date on which the LLP's right 

to receive dividend is established. 

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method. 
 

(i) Employee benefits 
 
Defined contribution plans 
Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund are a defined contribution scheme and the 
contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the contributions to the 
fund is due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the fund. 
 
Defined benefit plans 
For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity fund, the cost of providing benefits is determined using 

the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet 

date. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated 

future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government 

bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. 

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit 

obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the 

statement of profit and loss. 

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 

assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. 

They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet 

and will not be reclassified to profit or loss. 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or 

curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost. 

Compensated absences: 
Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation 
is done as per Projected Unit Credit Method. 
 
All actuarial gains / losses are immediately taken to the Profit and Loss account and are not deferred. 
 

(j) Taxation 
 
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 
 
Current tax 
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively 
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in 
the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in 
other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. 



Deferred tax  
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of 
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. 
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that 
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences 
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference 
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a 
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.  
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or 
part of the asset to be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period 
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
 
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow 
from the manner in which the LLP expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the 
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are off set if such items relate to taxes on income levied by the same 
governing tax laws and the LLP has a legally enforceable right for such setoff. 
 
 
Current and deferred tax for the year 

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are 

recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and 

deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax 

effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.  

 
(k) Financial instruments 

 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity. 
 
A. Financial assets 

 
(i) Classification, recognition and measurement: 
 
Financial assets are recognized when the LLP becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument.  
 
The LLP classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 

a) those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, 
or through profit or loss), and 

b) those to be measured at amortised cost. 
 



The classification depends on the LLP’s business model for managing the financial assets and whether 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
 
For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will be recorded in either profit or loss or other 
comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in 
which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the 
LLP has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity 
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. 
 

Type of 

instruments  

Classification Rationale for 

classification 

Initial 

measurement 

Subsequent measurement 

Debt 

instruments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Amortized cost Assets that are 

held for 

collection of 

contractual cash 

flows where 

those cash flows 

represent solely 

payments of 

principal and 

interest on 

principal 

amount 

outstanding are 

measured at 

amortised cost. 

At fair value 

plus  

transaction 

costs that are 

directly 

attributable to 

the 

acquisition of 

the financial 

asset 

Amortized cost is 

calculated using Effective 

Interest Rate (EIR) 

method, taking into 

account interest income, 

transaction cost and 

discount or premium on 

acquisition. EIR 

amortization is included in 

finance Income. Any gain 

and loss on de-recognition 

of the financial instrument 

measured at amortised 

cost recognised in profit 

and loss account. 

Fair value 

through other 

comprehensive 

income (FVOCI) 

Assets that are 

held for 

collection of 

contractual cash 

flows and for 

selling the 

financial assets, 

where the 

assets’ cash 

flows represent 

solely payments 

of principal and 

interest on 

principal 

amount 

outstanding, are 

measured at 

FVOCI. 

At fair value 

plus  

transaction 

costs that are 

directly 

attributable to 

the 

acquisition of 

the financial 

asset 

Changes in carrying value 

of such instruments are 

recorded in OCI except for 

impairment losses, 

interest income (including 

transaction cost and 

discounts or premium on 

amortization) and foreign 

exchange gain/loss, which 

is recognized in income 

statement. 

Interest income, 

transaction cost and 

discount or premium on 

acquisition are recognized 

in to income statement 

(finance income) using 

effective interest rate 

method. 



 

 

 

On de-recognition of the 

financial assets measured 

at FVOCI, the cumulative 

gain or loss previously 

recognized in OCI is 

classified from Equity to 

Profit and Loss account in 

other gain and loss head. 

Fair value 

through profit 

or loss (FVTPL) 

Assets that do 

not meet the 

criteria for 

amortised cost 

or FVOCI are 

measured at fair 

value through 

profit or loss. A 

gain and loss on 

a debt 

instrument that 

is subsequently 

measured at fair 

value through 

profit or loss 

and is not part 

of a hedging 

relationship is 

recognized in 

profit or loss in 

the period in 

which arise. 

At fair value. 

Transaction 

costs of 

financial 

assets 

expensed to 

income 

statement 

Change in fair value of 

such assets are recorded 

in income statement as 

other gains/ (losses) in the 

period in which it arises. 

Interest income from 

these financial assets is 

included in the finance 

income. 

Equity 

instruments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FVOCI The LLP’s 

management 

has made an 

irrevocable 

election at the 

time of initial 

recognition to 

account for the 

equity 

investment (On 

an instrument-

by-instrument 

basis) at fair 

value through 

other 

comprehensive 

At fair value 

plus  

transaction 

costs that are 

directly 

attributable to 

the 

acquisition of 

the financial 

asset 

Change in fair value of 

such instrument are 

recorded in OCI. 

On disposal of such 

instruments, no amount is 

reclassified to income 

statement. 

Impairment losses (and 

reversal of impairment 

losses) on equity 

investments measured at 

FVOCI are not reported 

separately from other 

changes in fair value. 

Dividend income from 



 

 

income. This 

election is not 

permitted if the 

equity 

investment is 

held for trading. 

The 

classification is 

made on initial 

recognition and 

is irrevocable. 

such instruments are 

however recorded in 

income statement. 

FVTPL When no such 

election is 

made, the 

equity 

instruments are 

measured at 

FVTPL 

At fair value. 

Transaction 

costs of 

financial 

assets 

expensed to 

income 

statement 

Change in fair value of 

such assets are recorded 

in income statement. 

 
 
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value and for those instruments that are not 
subsequently measured at FVTPL, plus/minus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition 
of the financial   assets. 
 
(ii) Impairment: 
 
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the LLP applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and 
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure: 
 

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, 
deposits, and bank balance. 

b) Trade receivables.  
 

The LLP follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables, 
which do not contain a significant financing component. 

 
The application of simplified approach does not require the LLP to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it 
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial 
recognition. The LLP uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of 
trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the 
expected life of the trade receivable. At every reporting date, historical observed default rates are 
updated and changes in the forward- looking estimates are analysed. 
 
 
 
 
 



(iii) Derecognition of financial assets: 
 

A financial asset is derecognised only when 
 

(a) the LLP has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or 
(b) retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a 

contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients. 
 

Where the LLP has transferred an asset, the LLP evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all 
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. 
Where the LLP has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, 
the financial asset is not derecognised. 
 
Where the LLP neither has transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of 
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the LLP has not retained control of 
the financial asset. Where the LLP retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be 
recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset. 
 
B. Financial liabilities and equity instruments: 
 
Debt and equity instruments issued by an entity are classified either as financial liabilities or as equity in 
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial 
liability and an equity instrument. 
 
Classification, recognition and measurement: 
 
(a) Equity Instruments: 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after 

deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the LLP are recognised at the proceeds 

received, net of direct issue costs. 

(b) Financial liabilities: 

Initial recognition and measurement: 

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus any transaction that are attributable to the 

acquisition of the financial liabilities except financial liabilities at FVTPL, which are initially measured at 

fair value. 

Subsequent measurement: 

The financial liabilities are classified for subsequent measurement into following categories: 

- at amortised cost 

- at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

 

(i) Financial liabilities at amortised cost: 

The LLP is classifying the following under amortised cost; 
- Borrowings from banks 

- Borrowings from others 

- Trade payables 



Amortised cost for financial liabilities represents amount at which financial liability is measured at initial 
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the 
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount. 
 

(ii) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 

Financial liabilities held for trading are measured at FVTPL. 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement, 

recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest 

paid on the financial liability. 

Derecognition: 
 
A financial liability is removed from the balance sheet when the obligation is discharged, or is cancelled, 
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a 
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 

 

(c) Financial guarantees contracts: 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the LLP are those contracts that require a payment to be made 

to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when 

due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised 

initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 

issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss 

allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less 

cumulative amortisation. 

C. Offsetting financial instruments: 
 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where 
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle 
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.  
 

(l) Fair value measurement: 
 
The LLP measures financial instruments, such as, certain investments at fair value at each balance sheet 
date. 
 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is 
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place 
either: 
 

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

 
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the LLLP. 
 



The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would 
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best 
interest. 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised with in the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
 

• Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
• Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement is directly or indirectly observable 
• Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement is unobservable 
 

(m) Provisions and Contingencies 
 
Provisions for are recognised when the LLP has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the 
amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. 
 
Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure 
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to 
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognised as interest expense. 
 
A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the LLP 
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The 
provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract 
and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the LLP 
recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract. 

 

Contingent liabilities are recognised at their fair value only, if they were assumed as part of a business 

combination. Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when the realisation of income is 

virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset. 

Information on contingent liabilities is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, unless the 

possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. The same applies to 

contingent assets where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.  

 

(n) Cash and cash equivalent: 
 
Cash and cash equivalents in the Cash Flow Statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short 
term investments with an original maturity of three months or less. 
 

(o) Significant accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions: 
 
The preparation of the LLP’s financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to 
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, 
assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. 
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The estimates and 
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to 



be reasonable under the circumstances existing when the financial statements were prepared. The 
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting 
estimates is recognised in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future year affected. 
 
In the process of applying the LLP’s accounting policies, management has made the following 
judgements, which have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements: 
 
a. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment: Determination of the estimated useful life of tangible 

assets and the assessment as to which components of the cost may be capitalised. Useful life of 
tangible assets is based on the for certain category of assets. Assumption also need to be made, 
when LLP assesses, whether as asset may be capitalised and which components of the cost of the 
assets may be capitalised. 
 

b. Defined benefit plan: The cost of the defined benefit gratuity obligation are determined using 
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from 
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future 
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All 
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 
 

c. Allowances for uncollected accounts receivable and advances: Trade receivables do not carry 
interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated 
irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems them 
not collectable. Impairment is made on the expected credit loss model, which are the present value 
of the cash shortfall over the expected life of the financial assets.  The impairment provisions for 
financial assets are based on assumption about the risk of default and expected loss rates. 
Judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation are 
based on past history, existing market condition as well as forward looking estimates at the end of 
each reporting period. 

 

d. Contingencies: Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, 
if any, in respect of contingencies/ claim/ litigation against LLP as it is not possible to predict the 
outcome of pending matters with accuracy. 

 


